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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 5, 2013, on
our consideration of the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts’ internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

'TOQUU W ESUwen IO

November 5, 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Westwood, we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We encourage readers to consider
the information presented in this report in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our
letter of transmittal.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the authoritative standard setting body that provides
guidance on how to prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Users of these financial statements (such as investors and rating agencies) rely on the GASB to
establish consistent reporting standards for all governments in the United States. This consistent application is
the only way users (including citizens, the media, legislators and others) can assess the financial condition of one
government compared to others.

Governments must adhere to GASB pronouncements in order to issue their financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. The users of financial statements also rely on the independent auditors’ opinion. If the Town of
Westwood's financial statements have significant departures from GAAP the independent auditors may issue a
qualified opinion or a disclaimer (where no opinion is given). These types of opinions may have an adverse effect
on the Town's bond rating and our ability to borrow money at favorable interest rates. The Town of Westwood
has enjoyed an unmodified opinion on its financial statements since the fiscal year ended June 30, 1984.

Financial Highlights

« The governmental assets of the Town of Westwood exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $98.1 million (net position).

« Atthe close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Westwood's general fund reported an ending fund
balance of $9.6 million, an increase of $1.3 million in comparison with the prior year. Total fund balance
represents 13% of total general fund expenditures. Approximately $7.3 million of this total amount is
available for appropriation at the government’s discretion, $1.2 million is committed for capital articles
approved by Town Meeting and $1.1 million is assigned for encumbrances carried forward to the
subsequent fiscal year.

* The Town of Westwood's total governmental debt increased by $895 thousand during the current fiscal
year. The Town issued $4.6 million for various roadway, equipment and building improvement projects
and paid $3.7 million in principal payments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Westwood's basic financial
statements. The Town of Westwood’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The
government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Town as a
whole. The fund financial statements focus on the individual components of the Town government, reporting the
Towns' operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. Both presentations (government-wide
and fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the Town's
accountability. An additional part of the basic financial statements are the notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
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Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Town of Westwood's finances, in a manner similar to private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town of Westwood's assets and liabilities, and
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Town of Westwood is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, human services, culture and
recreation and interest. The business-type activities include the activities of the sewer enterprise fund.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Westwood, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the Town of Westwood can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town of Westwood's near-term
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government'’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

In accordance with accounting standards, the Town reports fund balance components as nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Additionally, the Town’s stabilization fund is reported within the
general fund as unassigned.

The Town of Westwood adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison

schedule is included as required supplementary information for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with
this budget.
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Proprietary funds. The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-fype activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses an enterprise fund to account for its sewer operations.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the Town of Westwood's own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the Town of Westwood, government-wide assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $114.5 million at the close of fiscal year 2013.

Net position of $108.7 million (95%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and
equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The Town uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town of Westwood's net position $1.8 million (2%) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position $3.9
million (3%) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Governmental Activities: Balance at Balance at
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Assets:
Currentassets..........coooiiiiiiiiiiii $ 27,611,258 $ 28,427,335
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital).. 11,207,142 10,954,000
Capital assets, not being depreciated..... 5,858,382 14,797,071
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciatio . 114,387,912 103,673,449
Total assets........ccoovvvvuiiiniinniinn e 159,064,694 157,851,855
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt)..............c.......... 5,673,172 5,316,905
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)..................... 18,128,398 14,826,299
Current debt. . 3,817,917 3,362,917
Noncurrent debt............coooviiiiiiiiiiiiieiee, 33,401,249 33,049,166
Total liabilities.........cccoovviiiiiiiiii e, 60,920,736 56,545,287
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets............c.co..cooees 96,462,678 99,108,756
ReSICted. ... 1,806,455 1,878,233
Unrestricted. ..., (125,175) 319,579
Total net position...........cccovviviiereiceininieienans $ 98,143,958 $ 101,306,568
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Governmental activities. The governmental activities net position decreased by approximately $3.2 million
during the current fiscal year. The underlying reason for the continued decrease in net position for the last
several years is the adoption of GASB Statement #45 related to other postemployment benefits (OPEB). The
increase in the OPEB liability was $3.3 million this fiscal year which accounted for the entire reduction in net
position. The increase in the OPEB liability is also the reason for the increase in noncurrent liabilities (excluding
debt).

Governmental Activities: Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Program revenues:
Charges for Services.............ooovveiiiiiiiieniiieenans $ 7,216,901 $ 5,635,316
Operating grants and contributions........................ 14,617,337 14,155,121
Capital grants and contributions............................ 682,003 1,110,679
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes................. 57,631,776 55,088,302
Motor vehicle excise taxes . 2,591,759 2,335,495
Penalties and interestontaxes.............coooeeeiiinnnn. 180,465 264,092
Nonrestricted grants and contributions................... 639,972 748,294
Unrestricted investment income....... . 45,831 74,274
Gain on sale of capital assets..... . 290,000 50,000
Total revenues.......c.cccvvieiieninieiiinieeieeeaen 83,796,044 79,361,573
Expenses:
General government..........c.oceoveviniiiieiiieeiiinienns 6,151,299 5,135,899
Public safety. ... 9,735,929 9,391,010
Education.... 57,774,167 54,472,071
Public works... 8,351,807 7,204,025
Human services...... . 1,218,894 1,157,238
Culture and recreation..............cooevivviiiienieeeannns 2,801,155 2,386,859
Interest... ... 1,216,381 1,542,158
Total eXPenses.......ccccuviiminniiniiininiin i 87,249,632 81,289,260
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers..............cc..... (3,453,588) (1,927,687)
TranSfers. ..ot 290,978 290,978
Change in net position...........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceen $ (3,162,610) $ (1,636,709)

« Charges for services represent about 8% of governmental activities resources. The Town can exercise
more control over this category of revenue than any other. Fees charged for services rendered that are
set by the Board of Selectmen are included in this category. Most of these resources apply to public
safety and education operations, such as building permits, ambulance revenue, athletic receipts,
kindergarten revenue and bus fees.

* Operating grants and contributions account for 17% of the governmental activities resources. Most of
these resources apply to education operations.

« Capital grants and contributions account for 1% of the governmental activities resources. When
compared to fiscal 2012, revenue decreased 39% due to the library project nearing completion.
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Business-Type Activities: Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012

Program revenues:
Charges for Services...........cccoovvviviiiereeeiieeenennnn. $ 3,525,289 $ 3,677,221

Operating grants and contributions 85,164 31,638

Capital grants and contributions.... .. 45,115 222,624

Total revenues........cccvcvieeiiiiiiiiniiiiaceinsnianns 3,655,568 3,931,483
Expenses:

SEBWET. .. uivieiiieit ettt e 3,913,703 3,937,046
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers..................... (258,135) (5,563)
Transfers.....ccccviiiiiiici e e (290,978) (290,978)
Change in net position............cooeviieiiiiniicneannn, $ (549,113) § (296,541)

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, The Town of Westwood uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town of Westwood's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Town of Westwood's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $19.8
million, a decrease of $603,000 from the prior year. The majority of this decrease ($3.5 million) is reported in the
library capital project major fund as construction on the project progressed which spent funds received in prior
years. The general fund reported an increase of $1.3 million through positive budgetary results and the nonmajor
governmental funds reported an increase of $1.3 million related mainly to bond proceeds and bond premiums
recorded in the nonmajor capital project funds for road improvements, school building renovations and facility
renovations. For fund based reporting bond proceeds and premiums are reported as other financing sources.

The general fund is the Town’s chief operating fund. The ending fund balance increased by $1.3 million in
comparison with prior year. The primarily reason for the increase is due to stronger than expected real estate and
personal property collections during the current fiscal year, and budgetary turn-backs in employee benefits and
the reserve fund. These increases were offset by the Towns planed use of available fund balance.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund totaled $7.2 million, while total
fund balance totaled $9.6 million. The $1.2 million of committed fund balance represents amounts that have been
appropriated for specific purposes. The $1.1 million of assigned fund balance represents amounts that have been
encumbered at year end to meet contractual obligations at year end. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity,
it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 9.8% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
13% of that same amount.
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The Town also maintains a stabilization fund, which has been classified within the unassigned general fund
balance in the governmental funds financial statements to remain compliant with GASB 54. The stabilization fund
has a year-end balance of $2.5 million which represents 3.4% of general fund expenditures. These funds can be
used for general or capital purposes upon Town Meeting approval. Please refer to Note 11 for additional
information on the Town'’s stabilization fund.

The University Station Project fund is used to account for funds received in connection with the University Station
Project. At June 30, 2013, the University Station Project fund had a year-end balance of $348,000. This balance
increased by $291,000 from prior year as the Town recognized $1.6 million in revenue and recorded $1.3 million
in project expenditures.

The Library Project major fund is used to account for the construction of a new Town library. During fiscal year
2013, the Library Project fund has a year-end balance of $213,000. This balance decreased by $3.5 million from
the prior year as the Town utilized funds received in prior years for construction costs in fiscal 2013. This fund
also recognized $149,000 in capital grant revenue from a state library grant and recorded $3.6 million in project
expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final general fund appropriation budget totaled $72 million, which included $2.7 million in encumbrances and
articles carried over from the prior fiscal year. The final budget also included the use of $1.5 million in available
funds which netted with positive budgetary results for an increase of $705,000 on a budgetary basis.

General fund revenues came in over budget by $1.2 million. The majority of this surplus (62%) was in real estate,
personal property, and motor vehicle excise taxes.

Actual general fund expenditures and encumbrances are lower than final budget by 2%, with the majority of the
variance occurring in employee benefits where expenditures were lower than the final budget by approximately
$479,000. This is partially due to health insurance plan design changes implemented by the Town.
Additionally, the reserve fund turned back $288,000, as reserve funds were not fully required to fund
unanticipated events.

The $1.2 million increase between the original budget and the final amended budget was primarily supplementary
appropriations from free cash to fund the Town’s stabilization fund and the High School litigation fund and
appropriations from the ambulance and sale of lots and graves revolving funds and from additional state aid to
fund the fire department budget, the cemetery department, and salary increases. Additionally the Town voted
several transfers within budgetary line items during the fiscal year.

Capital Assets and Debt Management

In conjunction with the operating budget, the Town annually prepares a capital budget which includes detailed
information concerning those capital requests for the upcoming fiscal year as well as summary information for the
following four fiscal years to identify current projections of what level of capital outlay will be required in future
years.

As part of the capital plan the Town has historically financed the acquisition of some capital assets from current
revenue. This policy will continue to improve the financial position as net position will increase by the amount of
acquisitions less the current depreciation.

Major capital assets are funded by the issuance of long and short-term debt and capital grants. The effect on net
position during the construction phase of the project is neutral for assets acquired with debt since the Town
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increases its assets and associated liability by the same amount. In subsequent years the net position will be
reduced through depreciation and will be increased by the revenues raised to support the debt principal
payments. Net position is increased for assets acquired with grant funds since there is no corresponding liability
incurred.

Outstanding long-term debt of the general government, as of June 30, 2013, totaled $36.4 million of which, $8.4
million is related to library projects, $24.7 million is related to school projects, $1.7 million is related to roadway
improvements and $1.6 million for department equipment.

The enterprise fund has $1.3 million in sewer enterprise debt outstanding that is fully supported by the rates and
does not rely on a general fund subsidy.

The most significant capital asset additions during the year included various school building improvements, public
safety and public works vehicles, school computers and equipment, and roadway improvements. Also, current
year expenditures for the new library have been capitalized as building improvements as of June 30, 2013.

Please refer to notes 6, 7, and 8 to the financial statements for further discussion of the Town’s major capital and
debt activity.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Accumulated
Depreciation
Cost of atend Capital

Governmental activities: Capital Assets of year Assets, net
Land.......cooiiiiii $ 5,858,382 § -3 5,858,382
Buildings and improvements........... 106,701,907 (30,827,401) 75,874,506
Vehicles.............ooooeieeins 7,332,090 (4,372,913) 2,959,177
Machinery and equipment 11,115,625 (9,036,207) 2,079,418
Furniture and fixtures.................... 386,986 (298,326) 88,660
Infrastructure................cooeevieinnnn, 86,646,634 (53,260,483) 33,386,151
Total governmental activities.......... 218,041,624 (97,795,330) 120,246,294
Business-type activities:

Land......coooiiiii 350,850 - 350,850
Plant and infrastructure................. 26,464,464 (16,389,572) 10,074,892
Other buildings and improvements... 6,339,070 (3,467,935) 2,871,135
Vehicles.........ccoooviviiiiiiiiiiiennn, 489,316 (405,711) 83,605
Machinery and equipment.. 510,212 (271,047) 239,165
Furniture and fixtures.................... 35,323 (35,323) -
Total business-type activities........... 34,189,235 (20,569,588) 13,619,647
Total capital assets....................... $ 252,230,859 $  (118,364,918) § 133,865,941
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GOVERNMENTAL BONDS PAYABLE

Original Outstanding Qutstanding
Maturity Loan Interest at June 30, at June 30,

Project Through Amount Rate (%) 2012 Issued Redeemed 2013
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2004................ 2013 & 42,103,000 250-538 § 2,255,000 § - $ (2,255,000) § -
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008....... 2023 3,830,000 3.50 - 4.00 2,445,000 - (340,000) 2,105,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2009.... 2029 3,500,000 2.13-5.00 2,975,000 - (175,000) 2,800,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2010.... . 2031 9,300,000 3.25-4.00 8,835,000 - (465,000) 8,370,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012.. 2023 61,198,000 2.00-4.00 19,035,000 - (40,000) 18,995,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013................ 2022 4,635,000 2.00-3.00 - 4,635,000 (465,000) 4,170,000
Total Governmental ACHVIIES. ..........cooiiiiiriiiiiiiicsies e . 935,545,000 § 4,635,000 §  (3,740,000) § 36,440,000

ENTERPRISE BONDS PAYABLE

Original Outstanding Outstanding
Maturity Loan Interest at June 30, at June 30,

Project Through Amount Rate (%) 2012 Issued Redeemed 2013
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 1998.. 2019 $§ 3,220,700 3.88 $ 1230900 $ - $ (90,300) $ 1,140,600
MWRA Notes of 2012.......... 2017 212,300 0.00 212,300 - (42,460) 169,840
Total Enterprise Bonds Payable.............ccoocoiiieiiiiiiiieieeiiieeecs i ceseniee e e 31,443,200 $ -8 (132,760) § 1,310,440

The Town of Westwood has an “AA+" rating from Standard & Poor’s and an “Aa1” from Moody's for general
obligation debt.

Other Postemployment Benefits

In accordance with GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pension (OPEB), the government-wide activities have accumulated a liability for other
postemployment benefits totaling $17.8 million as of June 30, 2013 and have pre-funded future obligations
totaling approximately $527,000 during fiscal year 2013. The total assets set aside in trust for future benefits
amounted to approximately $612,000 at fiscal year-end.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

For the fiscal year 2014 budget, the Town has projected modest improvement in major revenue categories over
the previous year’s budget. General tax revenues are expected to increase by approximately 3%, and our state
aid is scheduled to be level funded. Economic driven local receipts; such as motor vehicle excise payments and
buildings permits, have also been level funded for FY 14 after stabilized collections from prior years.

The modest revenue increases and stabilizations have allowed the Town to make the following conservative
budget decisions:

+ The Town provided for an approximate 3% increase for the fiscal year 2014 school and municipal
operating budgets. The overall municipal budget increased by 4% due to increased staffing in the
Fire Department funded by ambulance receipts.

« Favorable settlement of labor contracts allowed the Town to remain within the 3% increase while
maintaining current staffing levels.

+ The fiscal year 2014 budget has level funded the base capital budgets and provides for important
sewer system repair work through a new debt authorization of $1.5 million.

* The fiscal year 2014 budget provides for a $100,000 appropriation to the stabilizations reserve
accounts, following a $500,000 appropriation through one time revenue.
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« The FY14 budget provides for a $503,000 appropriation to the OPEB Trust account. This is an
ongoing appropriation funded with the budget.

« The FY14 commercial and residential tax rates are not yet finalized, but are expected to increase
approximately 2.5%.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Westwood's finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report

or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, Town Hall, 580
High Street, Westwood, Massachusetts 02090.
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Basic Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Primary Government

tal iness-typ
Activities Aclivities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,875,308 § 2,329,997 $ 26,205,305
Ir P 15,723 - 15,723
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Real estate and personal property taxes. 541,864 - 541,864

Tax ens.........cccoeevivenineniiiinnins 770,371 - 770,371

Motor vehicle excise taxes...... 389,879 - 389,879

User charges. - 1,725,239 1,725,239

Deparimental and other. . 133,011 - 133,011

Intergovernmental...............ccooioeiiiiiiiiini e 1,885,102 47,943 1,933,045

Total Current Assets. P 27,611,258 4,103,179 31,714,437
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Intergovernmental.................. 11,207,142 248,407 11,455,548
Capital assets, not being depreciate: . 5,858,382 350,850 6,209,232
Capital assets, net of dep: 114,387,912 13,268,797 127,656,709

Total NONCUITENE ASSEIS. .....ceveeuveeeries e 131,453,436 13,868,054 145,321,490
TOTAL ASSETS....cooiiiininrninienianeiienins 159,064,694 17,971,233 177,035,927
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable...............ooooioioee e 2,380,796 12,719 2,393,515
Accrued payroll. 1,493,578 5,912 1,499,490
Accrued interest 261,186 7,630 268,816
Other liabilities. 432,812 - 432,612
Com d . . 1,005,000 16,000 1,021,000
Bonds payable............coovviriiiieenin 3,817,917 218,760 4,036,677
Total Current Liabilities.. 9,391,089 261,021 9,652,110
NONCURRENT:
Compensated absences... 517,000 - 517,000
Other postemployment benefits. 17,611,398 237,244 17,848,642
Bonds payable.................... 33,401,249 1,091,680 34,492,929
Total Noncurrent Liabilities..............ooiivnriiniinninnnn 51,529,647 1,328,924 52,858,671
TOTAL LIABILITIE! 60,920,736 1,589,945 62,510,681
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital @ssets................coooiiiiiiiiinns 96,462,678 12,309,207 108,771,885
Restricted for:
Permanent funds:
193,692 - 193,692
356,034 - 356,034
Gifts..... sseies sesse R iR R AR 320,770 - 320,770
Grants. o - 935,959 - 935,959
L icted.. (125,175) 4,072,081 3,946,906
TOTALNETPOSITION............ooiiiiiiiii. § 98,143,958 § 16,381,288 § 114,525,246

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

University Nonmajor Total
Station Library Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Project Project Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents 13,077,491 § 348438 $ 601,039 $ 9,848,340 § 23,875,308
Investments................. - - - 15,723 15,723
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes............. 541,864 - - - 541,864
Taxliens............coeveeinnn 770,371 - - - 770,371
Motor vehicle excise taxes 389,879 - - - 389,879
Departmental and other. 8,788 - - 124,223 133,011
Intergovernmental 12,284,000 - - 808,244 13,092,244
TOTALASSETS. ..o 27,072,393 8 348438 § 601,039 § 10,796,530 $ 38,818,400
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable...............ocooviiiiiiiiiiiiinnes $ 1,809,460 §$ - 8 388,748 § 182,588 $ 2,380,796
Accrued payroll... 1,493,578 - - - 1,493,578
Other liabilities. .. " 432,612 - - - 432,612
Deferred revenues.................. s 13,765,064 - - 932,467 14,697,531
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..o 17,500,714 - 388,748 1,115,055 19,004,517
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable. - - - 356,034 356,034
Restricted. - 348,438 212,291 9,325,441 9,886,170
Committed 1,237,464 - - - 1,237,464
Assigned.. 1,085,504 - - - 1,085,504
Unassigned........oooeuviiiiiiiiiiiien e 7,248,711 - - - 7,248,711
TOTAL FUND BALANCES........ccoeevvieiiieeiisie 9,571,679 348,438 212,291 9,681,475 19,813,883
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.. $ 27072393 §$ 348,438 § 601,039 § 10,796,530 $ 38,818,400

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Total governmental fund balances................ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii $ 19,813,883

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

........................................................... 120,246,294
Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds............cooovvviviiniin i 14,697,531
In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due............coooveviniiinnnnns (261,186)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds
BONAS PAYADIE. ...t (37.,219,166)
Other postemployment benefits (17,611,398)
Compensated absences 1,522,000)
Net effect of reporting long-term liabilities................ovvvvviiiiniiiieieiee e caenns (56,352,564)
Net position of governmental activities.................cccooiiiiiiiiii $§ 98,143,958

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds......

Motor vehicle excise taxes
Charges for services.
Penalties and interest on taxes
Fees and rentals.

Licenses and permits.

Fines and fo

Departmental and other.
Contsibuti

Investment income

TOTAL REVENUES...

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General
Public safety
Education

Public works......
Human service:
Culture and recreatio
Pension benefits.

Property and liability insurance.
Employee benefits.
State and county charges..
Capital outlay.
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiin e

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES.

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Issuance of long-term debt.

Sale of capital assets.

Transfers in
Transfers out.

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)...........

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ..o

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.........coocoviiniinniienceens

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts

University Nonmajor Total
Station Library Governmental Governmental
General Project Project Funds Funds

57,528,131 § - 8 - $ - 8 57,528,131
2,396,286 - - - 2,396,286

- - - 4,572,213 4,572,213

180,465 - - - 180,465
308,533 - - - 308,533
658,179 - - - 658,179
10,940 - - - 10,940
12,861,073 - 148,859 2,290,805 15,300,737
254,599 1,601,661 - 718,088 2,574,348

- - - 217,283 217,283

50,190 - - 3,102 53,292
74,248,396 1,601,661 148,859 7,801,491 83,800,407
2,687,636 1,310,832 - 450,886 4,449,354
6,291,846 - - 144,902 6,436,748
35,170,627 - - 6,534,911 41,705,538
4,400,302 - - 2,631,115 7,031,417
791,381 - - 48,821 840,202
1,283,378 - 3,626,915 698,688 5,608,981
9,164,381 - - - 9,164,381
325,755 - - - 325,755
6,455,007 - - - 6,455,007
570,404 - - - 570,404
1,964,049 - - - 1,964,049
3,740,000 - - - 3,740,000
1,327,341 - - - 1,327,341
74,172,197 1,310,832 3,626,915 10,509,323 89,619,267
76,199 290,829 (3,478,056) (2,707,832) (5.818,860)

- - - 4,635,000 4,635,000

- - - 290,000 290,000

1,254,221 - - - 1,254,221
- - - (963,243) (963,243)

1,254,221 - - 3,961,757 5,215,978
1,330,420 290,829 (3,478,056) 1,253,925 (602,882)
8,241,259 57,609 3,690,347 8,427 550 20,416,765
9,571,679 § 348438 § 212,291 § 9.681475 § 19,813,883
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds............ccccoeiiiiiiiiin s $ (602,882)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay......... 8,462,813
Depreciation expense. (6,687,039)
Net effect of reporting capital assets.............................. 1,775,774
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
are fully in the St of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, elc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in deferred revenue......... ... (294,363)
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.
Proceeds from bonds and notes. (4,635,000)
Debt service principal payments. 3,740,000
Net effect of reporting long-term debt............oooveeiiiiiiiiiiii (895,000)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.
Net change in compensated absences accrual. 53,000
Net change in accrued interest on long-term debt. 110,960
Net change in other postemployment benefits.. (3,310,099)
Net effect of recording long-term liabilities. ... (3,146,139)
Change in net position of governmental @CtiVIties. ...............cocioiiiiiiiiiiii s $ (3.162,610)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Business-type
Sewer
Enterprise
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash @QUIVAIBNTS. ......... ...t ettt $ 2,329,997
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
User fees 1,725,239
Intergovernmental. 47 943
Total current @sSels...........ooiiiiiiiiii e 4,103,179
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Intergovernmental...................... 248,407
Capital assets, not being depreciated 350,850
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation... 13,268,797

Total NONCUITENE @SSEES. ........viiiiiiiiieiin e s 13,868,054
O AL A S E T S . ittt ettt e e e 17,971,233
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable.. 12,719
Accrued payroll... 5,912
Accrued interest.. 7,630
Compensated absences 16,000
Bonds payable 218,760
Total current liabilities....... s et e aaaan e 261,021
NONCURRENT:
Other postemployment benefits.. 237,244
Bonds payable 1,091,680
Total noncurrent liabilities. ... 1,328,924
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...ttt ettt e e s s ae e e s e e sanines 1,589,945
NET POSITION
Net invested in capital @ssets. ... 12,309,207
UNreStrCtea. . ..eee e e 4,072,081
TOTAL NET POSITION. ..ottt s e e an e s annees $ 16,381,288

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts 22 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Business-type
Sewer
_ Enterprise
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

3,525,289

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Cost of services and administration 690,204
MWRA assessment U 2,317,405
BT oL = Tor = o o T PRSP 803,696
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ... ittt 3,811,305
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).. . ittt ettt ettt e e ee e s (286,016)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest expense (102,398)
Intergovernmental 85,164
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET......ooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicececc e (17,234)
INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS.........ccoooviieenn. (303,250)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
SEWET DEEIMEIILS. ...ttt ettt e et t et et e et aa et 45,115
TRANSFERS:
Transfers OUL.... ... s (290,978)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. ... 0iiiiiiiiiini e e s e ss s sn s s sase s easan e eines (549,113)
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 16,930,401
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR ...ttt e e ettt et e e ee e e e $ 16,381,288

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users.
Payments to vendors....................
Payments t0 @MPIOYEES. ..........uuiiiieiieii e

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES...

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TranSErs OUL......ccueieiiiiiiii e

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets.................c.cciiiviiiiin
Capital contributions.. .

Principal payments on bonds and noles
Interest expense...

NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES..............
NET CHANGE IN CASH EQUIVALENTS........oooiiiiiii e
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.........c.ocooooiiiinnn
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR.................oooiiiin,

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)... .
Adjustments to reconcile nperatlng income (Ioss) to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation... .
Changes in assets and Ilabllltles
USErfEeS.. .o
Warrants payable..
Accrued payroll..... .
Accrued compensated absences..
Other postemployment benefits....

Total adjustments. ...
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES......cccooiiiiiieiciecee e

NONCASH INVESTING. CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Intergovernmental debt service subsidy..............ccoccoiiiiiii

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Business-type
Sewer

Enterprise

.8 3,585,675

(2,657,172)
(371,834)

556,669

(290,978)

(608,520)
45,115
(132,760)

(51,496)
(747,661)
(481,970)

2,811,967

s___ 230007

-1 (286,016)

803,696
60,386
(64,951)
(1,756)
(1,000)
46,310
842,685

S__ 556660

$ 85,164
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITON

JUNE 30, 2013

Other
Postemployment Private
Benefit Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Trust Funds Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............c..ccoeeeeviiieeienneennnnn $ 612,328 $ 335064 $ 694,070
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Departmental and other........................ - - 80,233
TOTAL ASSETS ..ot 612,328 335,064 774,303
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable .. - - 1,015

Liabilities due depositors - - 773,288
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......ouiiiiiiiieiieeiie e - - 774,303
NET POSITION

Held in trust for OPEB and other purposes.................... $ 612,328 $ 335,064 $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Other
Postemployment Private
Benefit Purpose
Trust Fund Trust Funds
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:

Employer.. .3 611336 § -

Private donations - 97,395
Total contribUtions.............iiiii 611,336 97,395

Net investment income:

INEEFESE. ..o 992 2,596

TOTAL ADDITIONS . ... e e 612,328 99,991
DEDUCTIONS:

Educational SCholarships. ............ioiiiiii e - 104,345
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS .. ...ttt - 104,345
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. ... e 612,328 (4,354)

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i e - 339,418
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR ... ...ooiiiiiiii i e $ 612,328 § 335,064

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the Town of Westwood, Massachusetts (the Town) have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant Town accounting policies are
described herein.

A. Reporting Entity
An elected three-member Board of Selectmen governs the Town.

For financial reporting purposes, the Town has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially
accountable as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Town are such that exclusion would cause the Town's basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
As required by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the Town (the Primary Government) and its
component units. The Town did not identify any component units requiring inclusion in the basic financial
statements.

Joint Ventures

The Town has entered into a joint venture with the Towns of Avon, Canton, Dedham, Braintree, Holbrook, Milton,
Norwood, and Randolph to pool resources and share the costs, risks and rewards of providing vocational
education through the Blue Hills Regional Technical School District (District). As of June 30, 2013, the District
has no significant unassigned fund balance and has no outstanding long-term bonds. The following is the
address where the District’s financial statements are available, its purpose, and the assessment paid by the Town
during fiscal year 2013.

2013
Joint venture and address Purpose Assessment
Blue Hills Regional Technical School District To provide vocational education $ 49,358

800 Randolph Street, Canton, MA 02021
The Town has no equity interest in the District.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Board of Selectmen is responsible for appeinting three of the six-member Board of Water Commissioners of
the Dedham-Westwood Water District. The Town’s accountability for this organization does not extend beyond
making these appointments.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of changes in net

position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Major Fund Criteria

Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

« Ifthe total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all
fund of that category or type (total governmental or total enterprise funds), and

* [fthe total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental

and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly
significant to the basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific

function or segment. Program revenues include the following:

« Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

+ Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular
function or segment.

¢ Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial
statements. However, the effect of interfund services provided and used between functions is not eliminated as
the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions
affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to
be liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
fiscal year-end. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund.

The University Station Project fund is used to account for the funds received in connection with the development
and renovation of the new train station as well as residential, commercial, and retail units.

The Library Project fund is used to account for the funds used in the construction and development of the Town
library.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary fund is reported:

The sewer enterprise fund is used to account for the Town's sewer activities.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting except for the agency fund, which has no measurement focus. Fiduciary
funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for others that cannot be used to support the
governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The Other postemployment benefit trust fund is used to account for and accumulate resources to provide funding
for future OPEB (other postemployment benefit) liabilities.

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements that exclusively benefit individuals,
private organizations, or other governments. Some of these trusts have donor restrictions and trustee policies
that do not allow the endowment portion and any unrealized appreciation to be spent. The donor restrictions and
trustee policies only allows the trustees to authorize spending of the realized investment earnings. The Town’s
educational scholarship trusts are accounted for in this fund.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity. The Town's agency fund
consists primarily of student activities and planning deposits.

D. Cash and Investments
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Town'’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value. The fair values were determined by the closing price for those securities
traded on national stock exchanges and at the average bid-and-asked quotation for those securities traded in the
over-the-counter market.

E. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of

accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1 of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor's for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1% and May 1*' and are subject to penalties and interest if they are
not paid by the respective due date. Real estate tax liens are processed annually on delinquent properties. Real
estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy and are
recorded under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Real estate tax liens are processed six months after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and
are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly,
an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered and are recorded as receivables in
the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and
the fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of
value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.
User Fees

Sewer fees are levied quarterly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if
they are not paid by the respective due date. Sewer liens are processed in October of every year and included as
a lien on the property owner's tax bill. Sewer charges are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy
and are recorded under the full accrual basis of accounting.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of police details, ambulance fees and school rentals and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on
historical trends and specific account analysis.

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met. These receivables are considered 100%
collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

F. Inventories

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
basic financial statements and therefore are not reported.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, furniture
and fixtures, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, street lights, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity column of the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Except for the
capital assets of the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements, construction
period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $10,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or
construction, respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

The Town has included all general infrastructure assets regardless of their acquisition date or amount. The Town
was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through backtracking.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type (in years)
Buildings and improvements..................... 7-40
Plant and infrastructure........................... 7-40
Other buildings and improvements. 7-40
Vehicles..........coceeeenee. 5-10
Machinery and equipment.. 5-50
Furniture and fixtures........................ 5-20
Infrastructure.................... 5-50

H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Town did not have any items that quality for reporting in this
category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. The Town did not have any items that quality for reporting in this category.
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I. Net Position Flow Assumption

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and
unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town'’s policy to
consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

J. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as “internal
balances”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

K. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Transfers between and within governmental funds and are eliminated from the governmental activities in the

statement of activities. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.
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Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

L. Net Position and Fund Equity
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

Net position reported as “invested in capital assets, net of related debt” includes capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent
proceeds of capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets. Outstanding debt related to future
reimbursements from the state’s school building program is not considered to be capital related debt.

Net position are reported as restricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net position has been “restricted for” the following:

“Permanent funds — expendable” represents the amount of realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor
restricted trusts. The donor restrictions and trustee policies only allows the trustees to approve spending of the
realized investment earnings that support governmental programs.

“Permanent funds — nonexpendable” represents the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts that support
governmental programs.

“Gifts and Grants” — represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.
Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned
based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments’ or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. Town Meeting is the
highest level of decision making authority that can, by Town Meeting vote, commit funds for a specific purpose.
Once voted, the limitation imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended
purpose or a Town Meeting vote is taken to rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the Town'’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Town’s by-laws authorize the Town Accountant to assign
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fund balance. Assignments generally only exist temporarily. Additional action does not have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment.

“Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.

The Town's spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the

order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.

M. Long-term debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

N. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income from proprietary funds is voluntarily assigned and transferred to the general fund.

O. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.

Compensated absences are reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured.
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P. Use of Estimates
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

Q. Total Column
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents”. The deposits and investments of the
trust funds are held separately from those of other Town funds.

The Town follows internal investment policies as well as investment policies established under Massachusetts
General Laws. The Commonwealth’s statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury,
agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank
deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment Pool (the Pool). Additionally, they allow the Town to invest trust
funds in trust companies incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth, banking companies incorporated
under the laws of the Commonwealth which are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC),
national banks, in participation units in combined investment funds, in paid-up shares and accounts of and in
cooperative banks, in shares of savings and loan associations, in shares or savings deposits of federal savings
and loan associations doing business in the Commonwealth to an amount not exceeding one hundred thousand
dollars, and in bonds or notes which are legal investments for savings banks. Municipalities having trust funds in
the custody of the Treasurer in an aggregate amount in excess of two hundred and fifty thousand dollars may also
invest trust funds in securities, other than mortgages and collateral loans, which are legal for the investment of
funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth provided that not more than fifteen percent of any
such trust funds shall be invested in bank stocks and insurance company stocks, nor shall more than one and
one-half percent of such funds be invested in the stock of any one bank or insurance company.

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts who serves as Trustee. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same as the value of the
Pool shares.
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Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not be returned
to it. The Town's deposit and investment policy allows for unlimited investments in MMDT, U.S. Treasuries and
Agencies that will be held to maturity with maturities up to one year from the date of purchase, and bank accounts
and Certificates of Deposit with maturities up to one year which are fully collateralized or fully insured.

Additionally, the Town’s policy allows for investments in unsecured bank deposits such as checking, savings,
money market or Certificates of Deposit with maturities up to three months. Unsecured deposits in each
institution are limited to no more than 5% of an institution’s assets and no more than 20% of the Town'’s total
cash. At fiscal year-end, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $21,277,243 and the bank balance totaled
$22,209,671. Of the bank balance, $2,000,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $2,698,635 was
covered by the Depositors Insurance Fund, $85,064 was covered by the Share Insurance Fund, $10,519,561 was
collateralized and $6,906,411 was subject to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments
As of June 30, 2013, the Town had the following investments:

Equity Mutual Funds............cccccc..... $ 15,723
MMDT .o 5,957,196

Total Investments..... . $_ 5972919

In addition to the Town’s investments reported above, the OPEB Trust held $612,328 at June 30, 2013, which
was invested in MMDT.

The Town participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash portfolio and a short-term bond fund with combined
average maturities of approximately 3 months.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the Town will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of the outside party. At June
30, 2013, the Town does not have any custodial credit risk exposure for its investments since open-end mutual
funds and MMDT deposits are not subject to custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. In addition to the deposit and investment restrictions listed
above, the Town's investment policies allow for trust funds to be invested in any instruments allowed by the Legal
List issued by the Banking Commissioner each July. Stabilization funds may be invested in National Banks,
Savings Banks, Cooperative banks or trust companies organized under Massachusetts laws, Securities legal for
savings banks (i.e. those included in the Legal List issued annually by the Banking Commissioner), Federal
Savings and Loan Associations situated in the Commonwealth and the MMDT.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates could adversely affect the fair
value of the Town's investments. The Town manages its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates by limiting the allowable maturities of investments. The Town'’s investment policy limits the
maturities of investments in U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agencies and secured Certificates of Deposit to a maximum of
one year from the date of purchase. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit are limited to a maximum of three months.
The Town had no debt securities as of June 30, 2013.

Credit Risk

The Town's policy for Credit Risk requires all brokerage houses and broker/dealers wishing to do business with
the Town to supply the Treasurer with audited financial statements, proof of National Association of Security
Dealers certification, a statement that the dealer has read the Town’s investment policy and will comply with it and
proof of credit worthiness with minimum standards of at least five years in operation and a minimum capital of $10
million. All of the Town’s investments are unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town limits the amount that may be invested in any one issuer, except for MMDT, to no more than 5% of an
institution’s assets and no more than 30% of the Town'’s total investments. At June 30, 2013, the Town did not
have more than 5% of the Town'’s investments in with any one issuer.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2013, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 541,864 $ - 8 541,864
TaX NS e 770,371 - 770,371
Motor vehicle excise taxes................................. 458,879 (69,000) 389,879
Departmental and other... 198,011 (65,000) 133,011
Intergovernmental........ . 13,092,244 - 13,092,244
TOtAlL e e $ 15,061,369 $ (134,000) $ 14,927,369
At June 30, 2013, receivables for the fiduciary funds consist of the following:
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
DetailS. ... e $ 80,233 $ - 8 80,233
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At June 30, 2013, receivables for the enterprise fund consist of the following:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
SEWET fEES.....vuiieie e $ 1725239 § - 9 1,725,239
Intergovernmental...............cooeviiiniiin e 296,350 - 296,350
TOtal .o $ 2,021,589 $ -9 2,021,589

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Receivable type:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 312,026 $ - 8 312,026
Tax iens.........oeevevviiiiiiiiiieee . 770,371 - 770,371
Motor vehicle excise taxes. . 389,879 - 389,879
Departmentaland other................ccocooiiiiis 8,788 124,223 133,011
Intergovernmental...............cooeiiiiiiiiiii 12,284,000 808,244 13,092,244
Total.. e $ 13,765,064 $ 932,467 § 14,697,531

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:
General
Transfers Out: Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Fund.. .. 8 254,562 (A)
Nonmajor Governmental Fund.. 109,231 (B)
Nonmajor Governmental Fund 589,450 (C)
Nonmajor Governmental Fund 10,000 (D)
Sewer Enterprise Fund.................. 290,978 (E)
Total.. oo $ 1.254.221

(A) - Transfer from Special Revenue Bond Premiums Fund to support debt service expenditures.
(B) - Transfer from Special Revenue Revolving Funds to support conservation expenditures
and medicare expenditures.
(C) - Transfer from Special Revenue Ambulance Receipts for ambulance operations.
(D) - Transfer from Cemetary Perpetual Care Fund to support cemetery expenditures.
(E) - Transfer from Sewer Fund to the General Fund for indirect cost reimbursements.
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NOTE 5 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The Town contributes to the Norfolk County Contributory Retirement System (the System), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Norfolk County Retirement
Board. Substantially all employees of the Town are members of the System, except for public school teachers
and certain administrators who are members of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Teachers Retirement
System, to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the
Teachers Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf
payments totaled approximately $6,376,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and, accordingly, are
reported in the General Fund as Intergovernmental Revenues and Pension Expenditures.

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Norfolk County Contributory Retirement Board and are
borne by the System. The System issues a publicly available financial report in accordance with guidelines
established by the Commonwealth’s Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may
be obtained by contacting the System located at 480 Neponset Street, Building 15, Canton, MA, 02021.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of
annual covered compensation. The Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide
actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on active current payroll. The
contributions of plan members and the Town are governed by Chapter 32 of the MGL.

Annual Pension Cost - The Town's contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012,
and 2011 were $2,749,247, $2,619,736, and $2,417,220, which equaled its required contribution for each fiscal
year.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information, following the notes to the basic
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Additionally, the schedule of
employer contributions, presented as required supplementary information, following the notes to the basic financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information for required and actual contributions relating to the cost-sharing ple
as a whole, of which the Town is one participating employer, as well as the Town’s proportionate share of the plan’s
annual contributions. This information is designed to be helpful for understanding the scale of the information
presented relative to the Town.
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land.......ooooiii e $ 5,858,382 $ - 8§ - 8 5,858,382
Construction in Progress........c.vvvieeeeeiiiesiicnneeeeees 8,938,689 - (8,938,689) -
Total capital assets not being depreciated........... 14,797,071 - (8,938,689) 5,858,382
ital it in: reciats
Buildings and improvements.................ccccoeiinns . 92,438,395 14,263,512 - 106,701,907
Vehicles...............oo.. 6,515,157 1,682,268 (865,335) 7,332,090
Machinery and equipmen 10,637,712 477,913 - 11,115,625
Furniture and fixtures 386,986 - - 386,986
Infrastructure 85,668,825 977,809 - 86,646,634
Total capital assets being depreciated................ 195,647,075 17,401,502 (865,335) 212,183,242
Less accumulated depreciation fol
Buildings and improvements. (28,261,805) (2,565,596) - (30,827,401)
Vehicles.........ccoceeieeen (4,510,334) (727,914) 865,335 (4,372,913)
Machinery and equipment (8,018,351) (1,017,856) - (9,036,207)
Furniture and fixtures...... . (272,689) (25,637) - (298,326)
Infrastructure. ... (50,910,447) (2,350,036) - (53,260,483)
Total accumulated depreciation.............. PR (91,973,626) (6,687,039) 865,335 (97,795,330)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 103,673,449 10,714,463 - 114,387,912
Total governmental activities capital assets, net.......... $ 118,470,520 $ 10,714,463 § (8,938,689) $ 120,246,294
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land.....oooiiiiiiie e $ 350,850 § - § - 8 350,850

Capital assets being depreciated:

Plant and infrastructure...........ccooooeeiivieiiiiinniinns 25,916,432 548,032 - 26,464,464
Other buildings and improvements... 6,339,070 - - 6,339,070
Vehicles........oooviinii, 506,331 33,985 (51,000) 489,316
Machinery and equipment. 483,709 26,503 - 510,212
Furniture and fixtures 35,323 - - 35,323
Total capital assets being depreciated... 33,280,865 608,520 (51,000) 33,838,385
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant and infrastructure (15,871,244) (518,328) - (16,389,572)
Other buildings and improvements... (3,296,742) (171,193) - (3,467,935)
Vehicles (374,116) (82,595) 51,000 (405,711)
Machinery and equipment.. (239,467) (31,580) - (271,047)
Furniture and fixtures... (35,323) - - (35,323)
Total accumulated depreciation........................ (19,816,892) (803,696) 51,000 (20,569,588)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................. 13,463,973 (195,176) - 13,268,797
Total business-type activities capital assets, net.......... $ 13,814,823 § (195,176) § - § 13,619,647

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General QOVEIMMENE. ..ot $ 178,755
Public safety 367,686
Education... 2,896,276
Public works 2,888,897
Human services 34,358
Culture and recreation... 321,067
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities.............cocoeevivveniinnns $ 6,687,039
Business-Type Activities:
oo PSPPI $ 803,696
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NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING
The Town is authorized to borrow on a temporary basis to fund the following:

« Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

« Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing through
issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

* Federal and state aided capital projects and other program expenditures prior to receiving reimbursement
through issuance of federal and state aid anticipation notes (FANS and SANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations of the Town and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the General Fund and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

The Town did not have any short-term debt activity during fiscal year 2013.

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT

State law permits the Town, under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, to authorize indebtedness up to a
limit of 5% of its equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as
being "inside the debt limit.” In addition, however, a Town may authorize debt in excess of that limit for specific
purposes. Such debt, when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt limit.”

Details related to the Town's outstanding general obligation indebtedness at June 30, 2013, and the debt service
requirements follow.

Original Outstanding Qutstanding
Maturity Loan Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Through Amount Rate (%) 2012 Issued Redeemed 2013

Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2004 2013 § 42,103,000 250-538 § 2,255000 § - § (2,255,000) § -
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008 2023 3,830,000 3.50 - 4.00 2,445,000 - (340,000) 2,105,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2009 2029 3,500,000 213-5.00 2,975,000 - (175,000) 2,800,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2010... . 2031 9,300,000 3.25-4.00 8,835,000 - (465,000) 8,370,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012.. 2023 19,095,000 2.00-4.00 19,035,000 - (40,000) 18,995,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013... . 2022 4,635,000 2.00-3.00 - 4,635,000 (465,000) 4,170,000
Total Future Debt Service ReQUITEMENES..........c.ovvieiieeeceeeeseee e 35,545,000 4,635,000 (3,740,000) 36,440,000
Unamortized Premium on BONdS........c..ovvueiireesseeiiiee e ccseeaisee e e e e eeaaaae e e e eaaaannnnns 857,083 - (77,917) 779,166
Total Governmental Bonds Payable................cccoovivviiiiiiiini s 36,402,083 4,635,000 (3,817,917) _ 37,219,166
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 1998 (MWPAT).. 2019 3,220,700 3.88 1,230,900 - (90,300) 1,140,600
MWRA Notes 2012, 2017 212,300 0.00 212,300 - (42,460) 169,840
Total Enterprise Bonds Payable. ... 1,443,200 - (132,760) 1,310,440

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable............c..ooceiiiiiniiiiiiieccs

@

37,845,283 $_ 4,635,000 $ _(3,950,677) $_ 38,529,606
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for bonds payable in the general fund in future fiscal years are
as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

3,740,000 $ 1,292,572 $ 5,032,572

3,415,000 1,167,485 4,582,485
3,330,000 1,074,590 4,404,590

3,305,000 984,971 4,289,971

3,140,000 856,152 3,996,152

3,085,000 747,529 3,832,529

3,070,000 620,578 3,690,578

3,050,000 506,316 3,556,316

3,010,000 403,530 3,413,530

2,525,000 310,050 2,835,050

640,000 187,988 827,988

640,000 164,713 804,713

640,000 140,276 780,276

640,000 115,618 755,618

640,000 89,582 729,582

640,000 63,456 703,456

2030 eeeeereiereenns 465,000 37,200 502,200
2031 465,000 18,600 483,600
Totalevoveeeeeeeeren, $ 36,440,000 $ 8781,202 $ 45221202

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for bonds payable in the sewer enterprise fund in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

218,760 $ 48,124 $ 266,884

224,060 42,279 266,339
229,560 32,554 262,114
235,260 23,516 258,776
198,500 10,451 208,951
204,300 5,108 209,408
Total....oveeiiiis $ 1310440 $ 162,032 § 1,472,472

The Town has been approved to receive school construction assistance through the Massachusetts School
Building Authority (MSBA). The MSBA provides resources for eligible construction costs and debt interest and
borrowing costs. During fiscal year 2013, approximately $1,401,000 of such assistance was received.
Approximately $14,013,000 will be received in future fiscal years. Of this amount, approximately $1,729,000
represents reimbursement of long-term interest costs, and approximately $12,284,000 represents reimbursement
of approved construction costs. Accordingly, a $12,284,000 intergovernmental receivable and corresponding
deferred revenue has been recorded in the fund based financial statements and the change in the receivable has
been recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements.
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The Town is scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT) on a
periodic basis for principal in the amount of $296,350 and interest costs for $125,298. Net MWPAT loan
repayments including interest are scheduled to be $993,074. Since the Town is legally obligated for the total
amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. During
fiscal year 2013 there was no principal subsidy and the interest subsidy totaled $85,164.

The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) which offers its members
interest free loans for various purposes. The Town has $169,840 in loans outstanding at fiscal year 2013. The
imputed interest on this loan is immaterial and has not been recognized by the Town.

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2013, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Amount
Authorized and

Purpose Date Voted Article Unissued
Road Improvements.............ccocoviieiiiineannn 5/7/12012 13 $ 900,000
DPW Capital Improvements........................ 5/7/2012 14 500,000
Sewer Project. ..o 5/6/2013 14 1,570,000
Total oo $ 2,970,000

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, Retirements June 30, Current
2012 Additions and Other 2013 Portion

Governmental Activities:
Long-Term Bonds.......................... $ 35545000 § 4,635,000 $ (3,740,000) $ 36,440,000 $ 3,740,000
Unamortized Premium on Bonds....... 857,083 - (77,917) 779,166 77917
Other Postemployment Benefits. . 14,301,299 5,083,210 (1,773,111) 17,611,398 -
Compensated Absences.................. 1,575,000 997,000 (1,050,000) 1,522,000 1,005,000
Total Governmental Activities........... 52,278,382 10,715,210 (6,641,028) 56,352,564 4,822,917
Business-Type Activities:
Long-Term Bonds...........ccoeevuunnnns 1,443,200 - (132,760) 1,310,440 218,760
Other Postemployment Benefits. 190,934 157,213 (110,903) 237,244 -
Compensated Absences 17,000 16,000 (17,000) 16,000 16,000
Total Business-Type Activities.......... 1,651,134 173,213 (260,663) 1,563,684 234,760
Total oo $ 53,929,516 $ 10,888,423 $ (6,901,691) $ 57,916,248 $ 5,057,677

Compensated absence liabilities and other postemployment benefit liabilities related to both governmental and
business-type activities are normally paid from the general fund and sewer enterprise funds, respectively.
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NOTE 9 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

The Town adopted GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Types Definitions,
as part of its fiscal year 2011 reporting. The intention of the GASB is to provide a more structured classification of
fund balance and to improve the usefulness of fund balance reporting to the users of the Town’s financial
statements. The reporting standard establishes a hierarchy for fund balance classification and the constraints
imposed on the uses of those resource.

Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 §5B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund. Any changes to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund required a two-thirds vote of the legislative body. At fiscal year end the balance of
the General Stabilization fund is $2.5 million and is reported as unassigned fund balance within the General Fund.

GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund balance, which are nonspendable and spendable. Nonspendable
fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted to cash or they
are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items,
inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The Town has reported principal portions of
endowment funds as nonspendable.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balances, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

« Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.

« Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority.

+ Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a
particular purpose.

* Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.

The Town'’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.
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As of June 30, 2013, the governmental fund balance consisted of the following:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Nonmajor Total
University Library Governmental Governmental
General Station Project Funds Funds
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal............... $ -8 -8 -8 356,034 $ 356,034
Restricted for:
University station......................... - 348,438 - - 348,438
Library project...........coooviiiiiininn. - - 212,291 - 212,291
Town grants and revolving funds.... - - - 2,579,768 2,579,768
Schoollunch........ccoeeiiiniiiecinnns - - - 82,128 82,128
Ambulance fund.............ocooo - - - 794,903 794,903
School grants and revolving funds... - - - 4,136,945 4,136,945
Highway improvement fund - - - 122,650 122,650
Expendable governmental trusts. - - - 104,909 104,909
Roadway improvements...... - - - 1,013,740 1,013,740
School building renovations.. . - - - 35,692 35,692
Facility renovations. - - - - 261,014 261,014
- - - 10,201 10,201
Other expendable trust funds... - - - 183,491 183,491
Committed to:
General government... 522,509 - - - 522,509
Public safety... 535,461 - - - 535,461
Education . 61,040 - - - 61,040
Public WOrKs..........cccooiuiiiiiiiiniinins 118,454 - - - 118,454
Assigned to:
General government..................... 23,635 - - - 23,635
Public safety... . 470 - - - 470
Education. .. 1,041,499 - - - 1,041,499
Public works... 16,949 = - - 16,949
Human services 441 - - - 441
Culture and recreation. 2,510 - - - 2,510
Unassigned 7,248,711 - - - 7,248,711
TOTAL FUND BALANCES............ s $_ 9571679 $ 348438 $_ 212291 § 9,681,475 §$ 19,813,883

NOTE 10 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The amount of claim
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three fiscal years.

The Town provides health insurance to its employees through its participation in the West Suburban Health Group
(the Group), a non-profit trust comprised of eleven towns, one school district and two educational collaboratives.
The Group is self-sustaining through member premiums. The Town recognizes the cost of providing health
insurance by recording its share of insurance premiums paid to the Group in the General Fund in the fiscal year
paid. The purpose of the Group is to pay medical claims of its members’ employees and their covered
dependents. In the event the group is terminated, the Town is obligated to pay its prorata share of a deficit,
should one exist.

The Town negotiated to require every employee to move to cost-saver plans offered by West Suburban Health
Group and to share the cost savings with the employees. The percentages paid by the Town and employees will
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be adjusted each fiscal year in a manner that would allow any excess savings to the Town to be shared with the
employees. To accomplish this, the health insurance split for fiscal 2013 was increased from 64/36
(Town/employee) to a 65/35 percent split.

The Town is a member of the Massachusetts Interlocal Insurance Association (MIIA), a public entity risk pool
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for workers’ compensation benefits for
employees other than uniformed police and fire personnel. MIIA is self-sustaining through member premiums and
reinsures through commercial companies for stop loss insurance. The total premiums assessed by MIIA to the
Town during fiscal year 2013 totaled $169,299 and are recorded in the General Fund.

The Town is self-insured for the workers’ compensation claims of police officers and firefighters and are paid on a
pay-as-you-go basis from the General Fund. The estimated liability for workers' compensation claims is based on
history and injury type. The Town'’s liability is not material at June 30, 2013, and therefore is not reported.

The Town is self-insured for unemployment compensation. During fiscal year 2013, the Town appropriated
$107,000 to provide for anticipated costs of unemployment benefits. During fiscal year 2013, claims related to
unemployment compensation totaled $59,000. The liability for unemployment compensation was not material at
June 30, 2013, and therefore is not reported.

NOTE 11 — STABILIZATION FUND

The Town has $2.5 million in a stabilization fund classified as part of the general fund in the governmental funds
financial statements. The stabilization fund may be used for general and/or capital purposes upon Town Meeting
approval. During fiscal year 2013, the stabilization fund earned investment income of approximately $4,400.

NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description — The Town of Westwood administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the
Retiree Health Plan”). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses
through the Town'’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are
negotiated between the Town and the unions representing Town employees and are renegotiated each
bargaining period. The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy — Contribution requirements are also negotiated between the Town and union representatives.
The required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. The Town contributes 60 percent
of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members and their spouses. Plan members receiving
benefits contribute the remaining 40 percent of their premium costs. For fiscal year 2013, the Town contributed
approximately $1.9 million to the plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The Town's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
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The components of the Town's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the Town’'s net OPEB obligation are summarized in the following table:

Annual required contribution.. ..$ 5,143,808
Interest on net OPEB obligation... . 579,689
Amortization of net OPEB obligation..................ccccveuvn. (483,074)
Annual OPEB cost (eXpense)...........cccceveeiieineenaennnn. 5,240,423
Contributionsmade.................oooiiiii (1,884,014)
Increase/(Decrease) in net OPEB obligation.................... 3,356,409
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year........................... 14,492,233
Net OPEB obligation-end of year.................................. $ 17,848,642

The Town'’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal years 2011, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2013  $ 5,240,423 36% $ 17,848,642
6/30/2012 4,966,914 35% 14,492,233
6/30/2011 4,551,079 25% 11,277,145

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits totaled $59,054,291, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $37,620,046, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 157%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation, actuarial liabilities were determined using the projected unit credit cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment return assumption, which is based on the
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expected yield on the assets of the Town, calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date,
and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5% initially, graded to 4.5% inflation rate over 7 years, a 4.0%
aggregate annual payroll growth and a 4.0% inflation rate. The UAAL is being amortized over a 30 year open
period using a level percentage of projected payroll with amortization payments increasing at 4.0% per year. The
remaining amortization period at June 30, 2013 is 28 years.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS

University Station Project

The University Station project, the Town'’s high profile commercial development project, significantly advanced in
FY13. The project is scheduled to include over two million square feet of new mixed use development including
residential, commercial, hotel, office and retail components. The developer has demolished most of the existing
structures and began the installation of all utilities and layouts of the new road systems. State approvals have
been received for the project and construction is well under way with scheduled retail openings to occur in the
spring, 2015. Advancement of this project will significantly enhance the Town's tax base.

Library

The Town has completed the construction of a new 32,000 square foot main library located adjacent to the
current library. The project, at a cost of $13.85 million, began in fiscal year 2011 and opened to the public in the
summer of 2013. The project included relocating an historic building on this site, all costs associated with the
construction of the new facility, and the demolition of the current library. The Town financed the project with a
$9.3 million bond and received approximately $4 million from the Massachusetts Library and Green Incentive
Grant. The new facility, with community meeting space, vibrant children’s area and enhanced study rooms, has
been well received by the public. The project is substantially complete as of June 30, 2013.

NOTE 14 —- CONTINGENCIES

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the Town grant programs have been
audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2013,
these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at
June 30, 2013, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at June 30, 2013.

NOTE 15 — IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

During fiscal year 2013, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:

+ GASB Statement #60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements. This
pronouncement did not require additional disclosure and did not impact the basic financial statements.
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GASB Statement #61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. This pronouncement did not require
additional disclosure and did not impact the basic financial statements.

GASB Statement #63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position. Financial statement changes include net assets changing to net position
and invested in capital assets, net of related debt changing to net investment in capital assets. Notes to
the basic financial statements were changed to provide additional disclosure on deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources.

GASB Statement #66, Technical Corrections — 2012, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 10 and No.
62. This pronouncement did not require additional disclosure and did not impact the basic financial
statements.

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in future fiscal years:

The GASB issued Statement #65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required
to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

The GASB issued Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

The GASB issued Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2015.

The GASB issued Statement #69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations,
which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

The GASB issued Statement #70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

Management is currently assessing the impact that the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements.
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General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all the financial resources,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds. $ 56,822,755 § 56,822,755 § 57,302,993 $ -3 480,238
Motor vehicle excise taxes.. 2,135,000 2,135,000 2,396,286 - 261,286
Penalties and interest on taxe: 80,000 80,000 180,465 - 100,465
Fees. ... . 222,000 222,000 308,533 - 86,533
Licenses and permits. .. 350,000 350,000 658,179 . 308,179
Fines and forfeitures. 12,000 12,000 10,940 - (1,060)
[ 6,534,790 6,534,790 6,484,718 - (50,072)
Dep. and other.. 233,000 233,000 254,599 - 21,599
Investment income. 60,000 60,000 45,831 = (14,169)
TOTAL REVENUES..... 66,449,545 66,449,545 67,642,544 - 1,192,999
EXPENDITURES:
SELECTMEN
Salaries..... 426,856 426,856 422,740 - 4,116
pendi 47,300 47,300 46,162 168 970
TOTAL... 474,156 474,156 468,902 168 5,086
FINANCE COMMISSION
Salaries.. 39,289 50,489 50,420 - 69
Expenditures 21,763 21,763 16,419 = 5344
TOTAL... 61,052 72,252 66,839 - 5413
ACCOUNTING
193,942 200,942 200,865 ”
5,300 5,300 3,941 - 1,359
199,242 206,242 204,806 - 1,436
AUDIT-SCHOOL & MUNICIPAL FINANCIALS
Professional Services. 57,750 57,750 49,505 - 8,245
ASSESSORS
SalAMES. ..o 181,080 181,080 181,077 - 3
E I B N 20,826 20,826 16,174 3,920 732
TOTAL...... 201,906 201,906 197,251 3,920 735
TREASURER
Salaries. 95,454 95,454 95,322 - 132
12,050 12,050 7,295 - 4,755
107,504 107,504 102,617 - 4,887
105,749 105,749 105,741 - 8
Expenditures... B 73,850 73,850 68,286 - 5,564
TOTAL et 179,599 179,509 174,027 - 5,572
LEGAL
Salaries.. 91,088 91,088 91,088 - -
Expenditures... 140,518 140,518 139,915 - 603
TOTAL... 231,606 231,608 231,003 - 603
(Continued)
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
PERSONNEL BOARD
BOIMOY. . coicussivessvisai sisssnssssrsanissriasrisninanins " 161,813 161,813 161,787 - 26
E it 10,500 10,500 7,859 - 2,641
TOTAL... 172,313 172,313 169,646 - 2,667
INFORMATION SYSTEMS
SAlAMBS. ....voveeeeeeereeciins [T, 243,851 243,851 224,435 . 19,416
Expenditures. .. 230,262 230,262 210,692 19,285 285
TOTAL... 474,113 474,113 435,127 19,285 19,701
TOWN CLERK
Salaries.. 136,325 136,325 127,216 - 9,109
Expenditures... 55,200 55,200 45411 - 9,788
TOTAL... 191,525 191,525 172,827 - 18,898
CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Salaries........ cremenenenseneieniaaies, 44,099 44,099 44,072 - 27
E I B 8,280 8,280 3,110 262 4,908
TOTAL......... 52,379 52,379 47,182 262 4,935
PLANNING BOARD
Salanies. ........ooooiiii . 126,120 126,120 87,595 = 38,525
E itures 3,050 3,050 2423 - 627
TOTAL... 129,170 128,170 90,018 - 39,152
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
26,411 26,411 26,410 - 1
1,867 1,867 529 - 1,338
28,278 28,278 26,939 - 1,339
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TASK FORCE
Salaries.. 107,767 107,767 45,783 - 61,984
Expenditures... 1,150 1,150 64 - 1,086
TOTAL... 108,917 108,917 45,847 - 63,070
QUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Expenditures............ccooimiimiiiiicecee 49,004 49,004 37,246 - 11,758
MASS HOUSING PARTNERSHIP
Expenditures. 15,000 15,000 14,983 - 17
HOUSING AUTHORITY
E it 10,000 10,000 9,360 - 640
OFFICE COMMUNICATIONS
itures................ 125,000 125,000 124,489 - 511
TRAINING
pendil e 6,750 6,750 6,600 - 150
CHARTER COMMISSION
E I . 25,000 25,000 12,622 - 12,378
Total General 2,900,264 2,918,464 2,687,636 23,635 207,193
(Continued)
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Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
PUBLIC SAFETY
POLICE DEPARTMENT
Salaries.. 2,850,166 2,850,166 2,803,302 350
itures, 219,009 219,009 215,047 120
TOTAL. 3,069,175 3,069,175 3,018,349 470
ANIMAL CONTROL
Salaries..... . 46,453 46,453 45,944 - 509
pendi 7.500 7,500 5,987 - 1,513
TOTAL... 53,953 53,953 51,931 - 2,022
CROSSING GUARDS
BOIBSS. occsossonsssnssssssmsssessmarssmisrisiaasisarisniss 102,280 102,280 93,578 - 8,702
Expenditures 4,900 4,900 4,270 - 630
TOTAL... 107,180 107,180 97,848 - 9,332
FIRE DEPARTMENT
Salaries. 2,569,031 2,690,031 2,671,332 - 18,699
E dit 187,831 187,831 187,787 - 44
TOTAL... 2,756,862 2,877,862 2,859,119 - 18,743
BUILDING INSPECTION
Salaries.. 263,809 263,809 242,234 - 21,575
i 33,025 33,025 21,559 - 11,466
TOTAL...... 296,834 296,834 263,793 - 33,041
CIVILDEFENSE........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiciicc s 2,000 2,000 806 - 1,194
Total Public Safety. 6,286,004 6,407,004 6,291,846 470 114,688
EDUCATION
PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Salaries and exf i S 35,882,601 36,074,440 35,012,827 1,041,499 20,114
BLUE HILLS REGIONAL. 49,358 49,358 49,358 - -
Total Education.... 35,931,959 36,123,798 35,062,185 1,041,499 20,114

(Continued)
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
Salaries.. 1,537,733 1,537,733 1,537,695 - 38
I 479,160 479,160 446,930 15,870 16,360
TOTAL. 2,016,893 2,016,893 1,984,625 15,870 16,398
BUILDING MAINTENANCE
EXPENItUNeS. ..., ... ovooeeeeeeee e 651,559 651,559 627,445 1,079 23,035
MUNICIPAL & SCHOOL FIELD MAINTENANCE
Expenditures 114,000 114,000 92,772 - 21,228
SNOW & ICE
Expenditures 250,000 435,000 420,767 - 14,233
STREET LIGHTING
itures................ 140,000 140,000 120,592 - 19,408
WASTE/COLLECTION/DISPOSAL
penditures........ 1,155,000 1,155,000 1,154,101 - 899
Total Public WOrks.............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 4,327 452 4,512,452 4,400,302 16,949 95,201
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
HEALTH DIVISION
Salarie: - 206,753 208,353 208,334 - 19
Expenmlures N 8,723 8,723 7,875 - 848
TOTAL............. 215,476 217,076 216,209 - 867
QUTSIDE HEALTH AGENCIES 14,316 14,316 12,856 - 1,460
DISABILITY COMMISSION
Expenditures... S — 500 500 - - 500
COUNCIL ON AGING
Salaries........ 223822 223,822 222,500 - 1,322
Expenditures. . 25,285 25,285 23,761 - 1,524
TOTAL .o 249,107 249,107 246,261 - 2,846
YOUTH COMMISSION
Salaries.. 168,292 205,109 203,085 - 2,024
Expenditures... 15,234 13,234 12,792 441 1
TOTAL... 183,526 218,343 215,877 441 2,025
VETERANS SERVICES
Salaries... 27,738 27,738 27,007 - FEL
Expenmlures . 88,905 88,905 73,838 - 15,067
TOTAL........... 116,643 116,643 100,845 - 15,798
Total Health and Human Services.................. 779,568 815,985 792,048 441 23,496
(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Amounts Carried Variance
Original Final Budgetary Forward To Final
Budget Budget Amounts To Next Year Budget
CULTURE AND RECREATION
RECREATION
Salaries.. 256,126 260,126 259,655 - 47
itures, 37,654 37,654 37,571 - 83
TOTAL. 293,780 297,780 297,226 - 554
PUBLIC LIBRARY
Salaries........ 823,797 823,797 760,729 - 63,068
i 219,071 219,0M 216,399 2,510 162
1,500 1,500 1,343 - 157
1,044,368 1,044,368 978,471 2,510 63,387
MEMORIAL DAY
Expenditures 10,350 10,350 7,014 - 3,336
Total Culture and Recrea 1,348,498 1,352,498 1282711 2,510 67.277
PENSION BENEFITS
Contril y Pension........ 2,749,246 2,749,246 2,749,246 - -
61,613 61,613 38,780 - 22,833
Total Pension Benefits........... 2,810,859 2,810,859 2,788,026 = 22,833
INSURANCE
General Liability. 402,000 352,000 325,755 = 26,245
CAPITAL OUTLAY ... 2,413,704 3,210,654 1,964,049 1,237 464 9,141
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS. 6,795,826 6,888,057 6,408,992 - 479,065
RESERVE FUND. 625,000 288,000 - - 288,000
STATE AND COUNTY ASSESSMENTS....................... 560,670 560,670 570,404 - (9.734)
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL. 3,700,000 3,740,000 3,740,000 - -
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST.........ocoviiviiiiieieecie 1,679.818 1,330,818 1,327,341 - 3477
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... 70,561,622 71,311,259 67,641,295 2,322,968 1,346,996
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES................... (4,112,077) (4,861,714) 1,249 (2,322,968) 2,539,995
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in. 741,040 1,254,221 1,254,221 - -
Transfers out (50,000 (550.000) (650.000) - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3.421,037) (4,157,493) 705,470 (2,322,968) 2,539,995
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year.......... 7,070,674 7,070,674 7,070,674 - -
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year. 3,649,637 § 2,913,181 § 7776144 § (2,322,968) $ 2,539,995
See notes to required supplementary information. (Concluded)

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts 59 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Retirement System
Schedules of Funding Progress and
Employer Contributions

The Retirement System Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.

The Retirement System Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multiyear trend information for required and
actual contributions relating to the cost-sharing plan as a whole, of which the Town is one participating employer,
as well as the Town's proportionate share of the plan’'s annual contributions.
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NORFOLK COUNTY CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) ((B-A)/C)

01/01/10 $ 600,790,835 $ 1,001,881,055 $ 401,090,220 60.0% $ 223,332,595 179.6%
01/01/08 596,157,147 907,719,124 311,561,977 65.7% 223,814,977 139.2%
01/01/07 533,077,948 855,677,413 322,599,465 62.3% 219,620,865 146.9%
01/01/05 467,186,566 762,900,650 295,714,084 61.2% 196,639,163 150.4%
01/01/03 415,150,776 675,275,257 260,124,481 61.5% 185,281,985 140.4%
01/01/00 371,646,793 533,959,970 162,313,177 69.6% 163,542,978 99.2%
01/01/97 258,771,070 392,463,080 133,692,010 65.9% 126,219,194 105.9%
01/01/93 151,546,609 291,472,940 139,926,331 52.0% 107,482,975 130.2%

The Town's share of the UAAL, as of January 1, 2010, is approximately 6.08%.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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NORFOLK COUNTY CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

System Wide Town of Westwood
(B/A)
Plan Year Annual (A) (B) Town's Percentage
Ended Required Actual Percentage Actual of System Wide
December 31 Contributions Contributions Contributed Contributions  Actual Contributions
2012 $ 42,714,639 $ 42,714,639 100% $ 2,749,247 6.44%
2011 41,206,587 41,206,587 100% 2,619,736 6.36%
2010 39,749,857 39,749,857 100% 2,417,220 6.08%
2009 38,920,499 38,920,499 100% 2,329,423 5.99%
2008 33,104,903 33,104,903 100% 2,135,190 6.45%
2007 32,877,890 32,877,890 100% 1,852,100 5.63%
2006 31,755,708 31,755,708 100% 1,810,830 5.70%
2005 28,238,996 28,238,996 100% 1,590,774 5.63%

The Town's Actual Contributions equaled 100% of its Required Contributions for each year presented.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Schedules

The Schedule of Funding progress compares, over time, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits with the
actuarial value of accumulated plan assets.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions compares, overtime, the Annual Required Contributions to the Actual
Contributions made.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONE

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL as a

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Projected Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) ©) ((B-A)C)
6/30/2011  § - 8 59,054,291 $ 59,054,291 0% $ 37,620,046 157.0%
6/30/2009 - 49,334,499 49,334,499 0% 39,100,816 126.2%
71112006 - 53,091,156 53,091,156 0% 29,437,171 180.4%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal Annual Actual

Year Required Contributions Percentage
Ended Contribution Made Contributed
2013 $ 5,143,808 $ 1,884,014 37%
2012 4,891,733 1,751,826 36%
2011 4,502,956 1,156,674 26%
2010 4,260,901 1,078,212 25%
2009 5,873,531 1,302,000 22%

See notes to required supplementary information.

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts 64 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial Methods:

Valuationdate..............cooooeiiiiiiiii June 30, 2011

Actuarial cost method. ... Projected credit unit

Amortization methed... 30 year level percent of pay assuming a 4.0% annual increase, open.
Remaining amortization period.... 28 years as of June 30, 2013

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return. 4.0%, pay-as-you-go scenario

Inflation rate 4.0%

Projected salary increases. 4.0%

Healthcare cost trend rate.................cooooeiiiiiinnns 7.5%, graded to 4.5% over 7 years.
Plan Membership:

Current retirees, beneficiaries, and dependents..... 370

Current active members...............ocoooiivnniennn, 629

Totale i 999

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE A - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

1. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the Town to adopt a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The Town Meeting, which has
full authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
majority Special Town Meeting approval via a special article.

The majority of the Town's appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others
are continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year. These carry forwards
are included as part of the subsequent fiscal year’s original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized
for an appropriation account. However, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, regardless of whether
such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments
may exceed the level of spending authorized by two-thirds majority vote of Town Meeting.

The Town adopts an annual budget for the General Fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original fiscal year 2013 approved budget for the General Fund authorized approximately $68 million in
appropriations and other amounts to be raised and $2.7 million in encumbrances and appropriations carried over
from previous fiscal years. During fiscal year 2013, the Town increased the original budget by $1.2 million, which
was primarily due to fund a $500,000 transfer to the stabilization fund, $440,000 in litigation costs for the High
School construction project, a $92,000 transfer to the OPEB fund, and other supplementary appropriations for
departmental budgets. The increases were funded through available fund balance and transfers in from
Ambulance receipts and other Special Revenue funds.

The Town Accountant's office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary
control is exercised through the Town’s accounting system.

2. Budgetary - GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth)) is followed, which differs from the GAAP
basis of accounting. A reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the General Fund for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013, is presented below:
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis.....................o $ 705,470

Perspective difference:
Activity of the stabilization fund recorded in the
general fund for GAAP. ... 508,254

Basis of accounting differences:
Net change in recording 60-day receipts accrual...................... (139,881)

Net change in recording tax refunds payable.. . 365,019
Net change in expenditure accruals................ (108,442)
Recognition of revenue for on-behalf payments....................... 6,376,355
Recognition of expenditures for on-behalf payments................ (6,376,355)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis...............cccovvvniinnne $ 1,330,420

3. Appropriation Deficits

During fiscal year 2013, the Town reported appropriation deficits in the state and county assessment budget.
This is based on state assessments which are not required to be raised.

NOTE B - PENSION PLAN

The Town contributes to the Norfolk County Contributory Retirement System ("Retirement System"), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan ("Plan") administered by the Norfolk County Retirement
Board. The Retirement System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members and beneficiaries.
Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the Plan. Plan members
are required to contribute to the Retirement System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of annual covered
compensation. The Town is required to pay into the Retirement System its share of the system-wide actuarially
determined contribution which is apportioned among the employers based on active covered payroll.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Additionally, the schedule of employer contributions, presented as required
supplementary information, presents multiyear trend information for required and actual contributions relating to
the cost-sharing plan as a whole, of which the Town is one participating employer, as well as the Town's
proportionate share of the plan’s annual contributions. This information is designed to be helpful for
understanding the scale of the information presented relative to the Town.

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the Retirement System’s most recent actuarial
valuation:
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Valuation Date..............coooevvinnnnn
Actuarial Cost Method..................
Amortization Method .
Remaining Amortization Period......
Asset Valuation Method................

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment rate of return.............

Projected salary increases...........
Cost of living adjustments............

Plan Membership:

January 1, 2010
Entry Age Normal Cost Method

.. Increasing at 4.5% per year, level dollar for ERI liability for certain units

28 years remaining as of January 1, 2010

The actuarial value of assets is determined by projecting the actuarial
value of assets as of the beginning of the prior plan year with the
assumed rate of return during that year (8.25%) and accounting

for deposits and disbursements with interest at the assumed rate of
return. An adjustment is then applied to recognize the difference
between the actual investment return and expected return over

a five year period. This preliminary actuarial value is not allowed to
differ from the market value of assets by more than 20%.

8.25%
4.00%
3.00% of the lesser of the pension amount and $12,000 per year

Retired participants and beneficiaries receiving benefits............. 2,557

Inactive participants...................
Disabled

Town of Westwood, Massachusetts

......................................... 2,059

313
...................................... 5,526

......................................... 10,455

68 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Notes to Required Supplementary Information Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE C - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the Retiree Health Plan”). The plan
provides lifetime healthcare for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Town's health insurance plan,
which covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The Town currently finances its other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on a pay-as-you-go basis. As a result,
the funded ratio (actual value of assets expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability) is 0%. In
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, the Town has recorded its OPEB cost equal to the
actuarial determined annual required contribution (ARC) which includes the normal cost of providing benefits for
the year and a component for the amortization of the total unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the plan.

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information which compares, over time, the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits with the actuarial value of accumulated plan assets.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multi-year trend information for required and actual
contributions relating to the plan.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and included the types
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit cost between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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Other Supplementary
Information
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Combining and Individual Fund Statements
and Schedules

The combining financial statements provide a more detailed view of the “Basic Financial Statements” presented in
the preceding subsection.

Combining statements are presented when there are more than one fund of a given fund type.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than permanent
funds or major capital project funds) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specific
purposes. The Town's special revenue funds are grouped into the following categories:

¢ School Lunch Fund - accounts for the operations of the public school lunch program.

« Ambulance Fund — accounts for the fees collected for ambulance services which can legally only be
appropriated for costs to provide the service, such as Emergency Medical Technician firefighter stipend
and ambulance supplies.

* Departmental Grants/Other Revolving Funds — accounts for various grants and legally restricted
revenues for special programs administered by Town departments.

+ Educational Grants Funds — accounts for all educational programs specially financed by grants and
other restricted revenues.

* Educational Revolving Funds — accounts for educational programs financed by non-grant revenues and
gifts.

« Expendable Governmental Trusts — accounts for contributions where both principal and investment
earnings may be spent to support the government.

* Highway Improvement Fund - accounts for funds received from the State Highway Department which is
used for construction, reconstruction and improvements of roadways.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of major capital assets (other than those financed by enterprise funds). Such resources are derived
principally from proceeds of general obligation bonds and grants. The Town's grouping for non-major capital
project funds is as described as follows:

» Roadway Improvements — accounts for construction, reconstruction and improvements of roadways,
streets and sidewalks. Funding is provided primarily by bond proceeds, various grants and legally

restricted revenues for special programs administered by Town departments.

s School Building Renovations — accounts for renovation, improvements and capital equipment
associated with public school buildings.

* Facilities Renovations — accounts for renovation, improvements and capital equipment associated with
town buildings and facilities.
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Permanent Funds

Permanent Funds are used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government's programs.

* Cemetery Fund — accounts for contributions associated with cemetery care and maintenance.

+ Other Nonexpendable Trust Funds — accounts for various contributions associated with the public
library, schools and veterans services.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Departmental Expendable
School Grants/ Educational Educational Governmental Highway

ASSETS Lunch Ambulance Other Revolving Grants Revalving Trusts Improvement Sub-total
Cash and cash equivalents. 86,927 § 794,903 § 2637542 § 819,435 § 3405187 § 104,909 § 122,650 § 7.971,553
Investments..... - - - - - - - -
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:

Departmental and other... . - 124,223 - - - - - 124,223

Intergovernmental. - - - - - - - 808,244 808,244
TOTAL ASSETS. 86,927 $ 919,126 § 2,637,542 § 819,435 § 3,405,187 § 104,909 § 930,894 $ 8,904,020

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable. $ 4799 § - $ 57,774 § 27,027 § 60,650 § -8 - § 150,250
Deferred revenues. - 124,223 - - - - 808.244 932,467
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ......oooovveiiies 4.799 124,223 57,774 27,027 60,650 - 808.244 1,082,717
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable. - - - - - - - -
Restricted.. 82,128 794.903 2,579,768 792.408 3,344,537 104,909 122,650 7,821,303
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ........oo.ocoooiiiiins 82,128 794.903 2,579,768 792.408 3,344,537 104,909 122,650 7,821,303
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES... $ 86927 $ 919126 § 2,637,542 § 819435 $ 3405187 § 104,909 _$ 930894 $ 8,904,020

(Continued)
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Capital Projects Funds Permanent Funds
Total
Other Nonmajor
Roadway School Building Facilities Nonexpendable Governmental
Improvements Renovations Renovations Sub-total Cemetery Trust Funds Sub-total Funds
3 1,013,740 § 68,030 § 261,014 § 1,342,784 $ 356,034 § 177,969 § 534,003 § 9,848,340
- - - - - 16,723 16,723 15,723
- - - - - - - 124,223
- - - - - - - 808,244
$ 1,013,740 § 68,030 $ 261,014 § 1,342,784 $ 356,034 § 193,692 § 549,726 § 10,796,530
$ - § 32,338 § - § 32338 § -8 -8 -8 182,588
- - - - - - - 932,467
- 32,338 - 32,338 - - - 1,115,055
- - - - 345,833 10,201 356,034 356,034
1,013,740 35,692 261,014 1,310,446 10,201 183491 193,692 9,325,441
1,013,740 35,692 261,014 1,310,446 356,034 193,682 549,726 9,681,475
$ 1,013,740 § 68,030 § 261,014 § 1,342,784 $ 356,034 § 193,692 § 549,726 § 10,796,530
(Concluded)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Departmental Expendable
School Grants! Highway
Lunch Ambulance _Other Revolving Grants Revolving Trusts Sub-total
REVENUES:
Charges or Services......_......................cc........ .$ 862548 5 535571 § 730,022 § -5 2444072 -5 - 4572213
134,073 - 61,274 2,095,458 - - - 2,290,805
Departmental and other. - - 718,088 - - - - 718,088
Contributions. - - 133,588 - 74,595 - - 208,183
incom: - - - - - 172 - 172
TOTAL REVENUES. .. 996,621 535,571 1,642,972 2,095.458 2,518,667 172 - 7.789.461
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - - 449,607 - - - - 449,807
Public safety. - - 144,002 - - - - 144,902
Education. 1,052,880 - - 2,132,337 2,363,832 - - 5,549,049
Public works. - - 7.887 - - - - 7.887
Human services. ....... - - 48,821 - - - - 148,821
Culture and recreation . - 696,747 . . - - 696,747
TOTAL EXPENDITURES... 1,052,880 = 1,347,964 2,132,337 2,363,832 - - 6,897,013
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
‘OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES..... 535,571 295,008 36.879] 154,835 172 - 892,448
Proceeds from bonds and notes. - - - - - - - -
Sale of capital asset: . - 290,000 - - . .
Transfers out. ... - 589,450] 363,793, - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES), . (589,450) (73.793) - - - - (863,243)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ........coorvmurinninienes (56,259) (53,879) 221,215 (36,879) 154,835 172 - 229,205
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..... 138,387 848,782 2,358,553 829,287 3,189,702 104,737 122 650 7,592,008

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.
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Capital Projects Funds Permanent Funds
Total
Other Nonmajor
Roadway School Building Faciliies Nonexpendable Govemmental
Improvements Renovations Renovations Sub-total Cemetery Trust Funds Sub-total Funds
5 -5 -8 -3 -8 -8 -8 - 8 4,572,213
- - - - - - - 2,290,805
- . - - - - - 718,088
- - - - 9,100 - 9,100 217,283
- - - - 900 2,030 2,930 3,102
- - - - 10,000 2,030 12,030 7,801,491
- 1,279 1,279 - - - 450,886
. . - - - - - 144,902
- 985,862 - 965,862 - - - 6,534,911
890,432 - 1,732,796 2,623,228 - - - 2,631,115
- - - - - - - 48,821
- - 1,200 1,200 - 741 741 698,688
890432 985,862 1,735,275 3,611,569 - RE3| 741 10,509,323
890.432) (985,862) 1,735,275, (3,611,569) 10,000 1,289 11,289 (2,707,832)
1,500,000 935,000 2,200,000 4,635,000 - - - 4,635,000
- - - - - - - 290,000
R . R - - (10,000) (10,000) (963,243
1,500,000 935,000 2,200,000 4,635,000 - (10,000) (10,000) 3,961,757
609,568 (50,862) 464,725 1,023,431 10,000 (8711 1,289 1,253,025
404,172 86,554 (203,711) 287,015 346,034 202,403 548,437 8,427,550
$ 1,013,740 _§ 35692_§ 261014 3% 1,310,446 § 356,034 193692 § 549726 5 9,681,475
(Concluded)
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Agency Fund

The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity. The Town's agency fund
consists primarily of student activities and planning deposits.
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AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents................ccccccoeeciiiiieniee. $ 779,338 § 1,047,728 $ (1,132,996) $ 694,070
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Departmental and other...................ciniiine 48,902 521,892 (490,561) 80,233
TOTAL ASSETS....... P, P, e $ 828,240 § 1,669,620 $ (1,623,557) $ 774,303
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable............c.eeeveeeeereereeesceniieae e e eanes $ - % 1015 $ - 8 1,015
Liabilities due depositors - Student Activities.... 232,658 516,334 (547,642) 201,350
Liabilities due depositors - Planning Deposits.. 595,582 1,052,271 (1,075,915) 571,938
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot i i $ 828,240 $ 1,569,620 $ (1,623,557) $ 774,303
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Statistical Section

This part of the Town of Westwood comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the Town's overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Town's financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Town's most significant local revenue source,
the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town's current levels of
outstanding debt and the Town’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the Town'’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
Town’s financial report relates to the services the Town provides and the activities it performs.

SOURCES: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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Town of Westwood, Massachusetts
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of June 30, 2013

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Town of Westwood. Massachusetts QOutstanding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
NOMOlK COUNLY. ...t 12,860,000 3.16% $ 406,119
TOWN AITECEAEDE. ... e e 36,440,000
Total direct and overapping EDt...........oouuiii i e $ 36,846,119

Source: Town of Westwood, Finance Department and related organizations.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with geographic boundaries of the Town.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
taxpayers of Town. This process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-
term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the property taxpayers should be taken into account. However, this does
not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping
government.

Town of Westwood, Massachusefts 90 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

poday [eloueuld [enuuy aAisuayeidwon 16 S)}oSNyoessey ‘Poomjsapm Jo UMO [
JuslWyEdag BIUBUL ‘POOMISBAA JO UMO] BINOS
%0022 %SEET %9222 %9L'Ye %8YTT %56 ¥T Y%9¥'Se %E9'LE %08'SE %S2'8E jop jo obejusoiad e se
1| 8y o) eqeadde jqap [0 L
“GOLVGEPYE & GPOIEBIPL  § OZG66P8v. § Ccapa0wpl  § 0BG LOVIGH & OCCCBS OV § L9882V G  LOGPZLELE S  OZPOLOGOF §  BOGGRGOR | § 1 ssuiew qep jesa
000067 § 000S¥Z9  § 000046 § 0000s¥6  § 0000SK'k  § O00SES® § 000S98E  § OQ00GPYE  § OPEEZ0L  § OPEEESS  § 1G9p PANSsIUN pUE POZIOINY
Ov¥0SLZE S 002’8869 § 009'0VB'ZY  § UBZ'SYL'BE  § GZL'0SLZr  § G/B'0BL'YY §  828LE'Yy §  6YOES6r  §  vO9'60L'YS  §  ZBS'E6Y'ES S \ eigeaijdde jqep Buipueising
18807
SYL'SLI'GBL  §  SPI'SLL'GRL  §  021L'0SZ'Z6L  §  0ZL'0SZ'26L  §  GOM'BOE'SEL  §  GOL'BOE'SEL §  SOP'O0L'MGL §  SOVOOL'LBL  §  OEW'ZLLOLL  §  OEP'ZLL'OLL  § UUONENIEA POZENbA JO G- W 1Geq
"006Z0EZOLE § 006 ZOECOLE § O0FZOOSPBE § O0FCOOSPEE § 00LCOL906E § O0LZOL90GE S O00LBOOPESE § O00F'BOOPER'E § O00UBYFSIVE § O000BYPSIPE § nenjeA pozienb3
troe Zi0e Tz oioz G002 @00z 002 8602 5002 vo0Z
FCINCEDF

sJe9 ) |€I814 UL IseT

ujBiep ygaq [ebe jo uopendwos

S)OSNYIBSSEI ‘POOMISIM JO UMO



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Hoday ejoueury [enuuy aajsuayaiduwon 26 SHasnyoessey ‘POOMISIM JO UMOL

juawdojaaag a2I0PHOAA JO 300 YIN

POOMISBAN JO UMO | ‘Slusweda( }8|D) UMO | pue [00yos

uoneonp3 Alepuooesg pue Alejuswa|3 Jo uswpedaq YN

B]EP SNSUSD JUSD8J }SOW UO paseq si abe ueipajy
SO0IAI8S [ED07 JO UOISIAI(] ‘'SNSU8)) S ' :82IN0S

%L 90Z'e 0Ly L9¥'TL $ 909'ZZe'650'L $ 81971 €102
%EY 610 oLy €62'0L $ 8/€'9¥6'/20'L ¢ 8L9'vl zLoz
%St osL'e 0Ly ¥1€'99 $ G/£'€8E'696  $ 8197l 1102
%19 ¥8L'e 0Ly 19529 $ 62.'lvl'ess  $ Gl/'Gl 0L0Z
%L'G zLo'e oLy 020'6S $ €16'9z¥'sze ¢ 089'Gl 6002
%L'Z 800°¢ 0Ly 619'GS $ 861°z9z'L/8 $ 8¥9'Gl 8002
%0°€ €20’ 0Ly 125'TS $ oos'ese'els $ G8Y'Gl 1002
%L'2 5162 0Ly ¥S567 $ 018°220'v9.  $ 8L1'Gl 9002
%E'E 198'¢ 0Ly 6¥.'0V $ €L9'0v6'LLL  $ 622Gl 5002
%L’z 0£8°C 0Ly coL'vy $ £€96'618'899  $ G9L'GlL 002
ajey juawijoduy aby awoou| awoou| sajewl}s3y dea
juawiojdwaun |jooyos ueipap Jeuosiad |euosiad uone|ndod |eoasi4q
ejde)
lad

siea ) [edsi4 ua] jseT]
S$921)s1)e)S o1wouody pue siydesbowaq

S)}1asnyoessef) ‘POOMISIAA JO UMO |



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

poday [ejoueulq fenuuy aAjsuayaiduwo) £6 s)jasnyoesseyy ‘Poomisap JO UMO
awdojpAsq 82| {IOM SHESNUDBSSE 192IN0g
%e9 0Lt %lS (47084 |ejol
%z oL 0EL - B uononpoId Jud 1009gaND)
%E 8 002 - - uonnquisig sped oiny dioD siojop eiauUaD)
%t 9 00g - - SUONEDIUNWILLIOT) NOH|
sjuauodwo Jandwoe)
%G S 0S¢ - - Joj juawdinb3 ysa) uonesodion X1
%T 0L (153 lajeaq 1) SIOJ0N JIB|D)|
%Z 6 0sL soluoJPa|g Aepw uewwnig) doJyuon|
%E 6 002 %E g 9Ll uoleuuojul |eaIpay aln|
%t L 00g %E L 002 ABojouysa] jusiainsesyy uonesodio) 3Qv|
% 9 0se Ssweg) 08pIA QU BuIgquIn |
%9 14 06€ % S 082 sl euuadng s13yjoig ayaoy|
%S 14 see @oueInsu| 8y SOUBINSU| B)I7 HIOA MEN]
Yol € 0st %l € SeY uoneuuoju] |eaIpay “oU] "Yospal|
%L z 052 %Ll z 00L s8IAIag [epuBUly syueg jesig sjelg|
%9L 2 00L°L %Ll I SLLL Auedwo) semod JEISN
wawAhojdwg Huey saakojdwg JuawAho|dwz yuey saakojdwg ssauisng 19kojdwg
umo] |ejo) umo] |ejo) jo
jo abejuasiag Jo abejuasiag ainjeN
002 £10¢

0By siea) auIN pue Jeaj Juaung

(umo) Buipnjaxa) ssehojdwz jedioung

W ‘po

M Jo UMoL




Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

poday |eraueulq jenuuy aaisuayaisduion 6 sjjasnyoessey ‘poomjsap Jo umoj

SPJIOD8Y UMOL :80.N0S
9 ¥e9 €19 6¥9 059 129 129 095 125 80§ e leol
€l €l oL oL 0L 6 6 6 6 6 T uoiealidoal pue aimny
6 6 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 e S8OIAJOS UBWNH
[ 6¢ 6¢ 6¢ 62 62 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 0 S}om alignd
96¢ 6.¥% 9Ly cLS €15 £6¥ 88¥F LE¥ 96¢€ 64€ T'uoneanp3y
2L ZL 0L 0L 0L 69 69 99 89 89 Rajes oland
[44 [44 [#4 [#4 (44 ¥4 74 0z 0z gL e juawuianob [eraueg

uonoun4
€102 FANITA Loz oLoz 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002
Jea ) |eosldy

siea) |easi4 uaj jse

uonoung Aq seakojdwz umo] jusjeanbz swy-ng

S)ASNYILSSEJ ‘POOMISAM JO UMOL



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

poday fel 14 [enuuy yasduron 56 S}}aSNYoeSSeY ‘POOMISEM JO UMO L

swawedaq W01 SNOUEA '8N0
BIqEFEAE 10U UOHEWLOJUI £L0Z BION
SIGEIEAE J0U UOEULIOJU) YN

05L's 0S8y - - - - - - - - “siuedaiied sjuen3 (eeds
8rz's oz'L £10'8 e L18's gt 196'L 056'9 289 soL'L TS uedied
uoneansy
£00'L 186 688 9 9L 228 £89 005"} oze'L 892'L “8IN0Y UOHE}NSUOD [BIUND JUBPISEI IS
$80IM8S AUEd § WINOA
9UL'S 16L'8 85004 #2804 2281l oeH L 221 PLTTH L06°FPk 005z} “soupuaje wesboig
856261 \¥6'LIZ 2z¥'082 1¥2'082 z11'502 ¥OrZHE $O6'SEZ LIB'ERZ 126° 242 00£'5EZ uoneInang
089'821 LEL'SLL LEV'SHL PLLLLL viz'siL 8rL'021 ave'LiL YOE'601 S2E'6LL 210211 s 080D Ul SOWNIOA
souesq
2EL'L S20'L 989 zzr'e 880'9 bos'L m'y e SPE'T 268'T sdu) uen-eapely
82561 YO¥'BL 82961 88661 21861 9.5'61 £09'61 86851 5z9'vL 0r0'SL "PanIES SIEBW PBIONIBP BWOH
Buiby uo ouNoy
8z a8z 008 Lze (124 w2y S05 9%y izy Siv ‘suonoadsul
9.8 9ze 958 ue e siE s £ve 65€ are G e panss| spwiog
WiesH jo pieog
$AUNS UBWNH
81 05z € 262 oz re % €15 6.1 09 s slupdioped ABQ @IS SNopiBZeH
BEY'L 162} vZe'L BZE'} 105" 565'h 959 L'l L08'4 ove'L suoy/Buiokoey
15 2L 69 9L e 99 29 89 89 25 SjueULaI)
0L £ % ¥S 24 15 9 09 iv 92 POs 8107
Kvjawon
SO oangd
602'€ £1z'e BLIE 60'C vZ0'e 800'€ £20'e 1982 ozL'z £45'2 UBLIOAIS 00D D)jaNd
uoneanp3
SE6'L £28' 1281 L09't 168'L 668'L 266'L 8L L't vaz'L s panss) Siued
ewpedaq Bupyng
582 o0’ 6E0E P8z SI0'E PLTE 089'Z 86LT €6LT 8997 e ‘sasuodsa) Aoualisowy
995 s Sov oge z9¢ e ey 207 ] €99 . panss| .
904 m 18 69 SL 904 0L 96 sz1 i R SMBIAGI UBI
668 6LL 982 Loz oLz ov8 686 668 258 ov8 " e suonedsu]
iy
8iv Sty zlE 8E6 9% 85 2ls 129 198 888 e SUIBIDWOD [BLIUE JO JBqUINU [E10]
69L 216 €18 88L 628 ore 160°4 SELE S¥Z'L (2% rsuueie Aiejbung asied
v s vl av v L 6zL z8 a5t e “panss| siex Bunyied
299'L [ 986 L6L'Z 918"t £85'2 20T 909' wN v08'L 11 panss| SUOEYD Dje) |
Lz a8 68 aL 06 £51 S5k fr4 YN il sisaLy
ez 161 652 ¥5Z 4 £9Z [ ¥z 70z 0Lz e *++paLOdes SBWLD WIOJUN
680'F1 008'2L €162 POP'PL 61821 vez'al €66'1 00£'5H 898'1 20v'sH ‘sea1A185 80jj0d 10} SJED PajUBLINGOQ
890
gL 288"t £ €1z 6€2'L 860'L gL'k 000'L 601"k 166 - e pesusay sBog
291 vk ¥Sl €91 oL sl Spl vl i £51
95 €L iy 9€ 144 9€ il £5 [ 6y
oL L 6 Lk i vl gL ek zsi 91
£55°01 926'6 0s¥'6 z8L'0L 0v0'0L ¥8S'6 £5E°6 £2C'6 666'8 Z80'6 e UORIBE UMD ENULY 'SIBI0A PaseisiBay
8l9'PL 219'vL 8L9'WL PESGL 089'1 8ro'sl S8Y'Sl 21751 961°51 Ses'pl s yogerndog
uewwIeAOD) [E10URD
z10z [ 0102 6002 8002 1002 5002 5002 #00Z €002 WeTBoIgiuonsund

TeoA [Eos1g
s1e04 [e3siy usy 1527
weiBoig/uopoun 3 Ag sioleaipul Bugeiado

Spasnyaesse ‘POOMISB JO UMDY



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Joday [ersueuiq [enuuy aAlsuayaiduwion 96 SPasSNYILSSeY ‘POOMISIM JO UMO ]

sjuslupeda UMO SNOLIEA :82IN0S

00 004 002 002 004 002 00£ VIN VIN VIN (sbesuoe) pue| uoheAlasuo)

4 z 4 [4 4 4 4 4 4 4 “Usaleq]
UOIjE8I28Y PUER 2IN)ND

I I I I L I L I l Lo Ajjoed Jsyuag lolueg
S@0IAleg UBWNKH

l I I L L I 3 3 I Lo e sjooyos ybiy jo JaquinN

1 I L L L L L 3 L L v *''S|00Y0s 8|ppiW o JaquinN

S S S ] ] S g S [+ [] s|00y0s AlRjusiLua|a Jo JaquinN
uopeanp3

4 Z Z 4 4 4 4 4 Z 4 prne e glONRYG JO JOQUINN
all4

I I 3 3 L 3 3 3 I 3 Suone;s Jo JequinN
8dljlod

€ € € € € € € € € € sBuip|ing jo JaquinN
JUBLUUIBAODS) [BIBLBE)
€102 zLoz [Air4 0L02 6002 8002 2002 9002 5002 002 weiboid/uopoung

Jea, |easiy

slea) |easly ua) jse
weibBoig/uonsung Aq sonsiels Jessy |eyden

S)esnyoesSe ‘POOMISAN JO UMO |



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report




Comprehensive Annual Financial Report




Comprehensive Annual Financial Report




Town of Westwood 117t Annual Report

End of part 2 of 4
Please download the Appendices B, and C
For a complete archive of the 117t Annual Report.
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